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(c) The time within which such pres-
entation shall be submitted.

§502.45 Final decision of the Adminis-
trative Review Board.

The ARB’s final decision shall be
issued within 90 days from the notice
granting the petition and served upon
all parties and the ALJ, in person or by
certified mail.

RECORD

§502.46 Retention of official record.

The official record of every com-
pleted administrative hearing provided
by these regulations shall be main-
tained and filed under the custody and
control of the Chief Administrative
Law Judge, or, where the case has been
the subject of administrative review,
the ARB.

§502.47 Certification.

Upon receipt of a complaint seeking
review of a decision issued pursuant to
this part filed in a U.S. District Court,
after the administrative remedies have
been exhausted, the Chief Administra-
tive Law Judge or, where the case has
been the subject of administrative re-
view, the ARB shall promptly index,
certify and file with the appropriate
U.S. District Court, a full, true, and
correct copy of the entire record, in-
cluding the transcript of proceedings.
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Subpart A—General Provisions

§503.0 Introduction.

The regulations in this part cover the
enforcement of all statutory and regu-
latory obligations, including require-
ments under 8 U.S.C. 1184(c) and 20 CFR
part 655, Subpart A, applicable to the
employment of H-2B workers admitted
under the Immigration and Nationality
Act (INA), 8 U.S.C. 1101(a)(15)(H)(ii)(b),
and workers in corresponding employ-
ment, including obligations to offer
employment to eligible United States
(U.S.) workers and to not lay off or dis-
place U.S. workers in a manner prohib-
ited by the regulations in this part or
20 CFR part 655, Subpart A.

§5038.1 Scope and purpose.

(a) Statutory standard. 8 U.S.C.
1184(c)(1) requires the Secretary of the
Department of Homeland Security
(DHS) to consult with appropriate
agencies before authorizing the entry
of H-2B workers. DHS regulations 8
CFR 214.2(h)(6)(iv) provide that a peti-
tion to bring nonimmigrant workers on
H-2B visas into the U.S. for temporary
nonagricultural employment may not
be approved by the Secretary of DHS
unless the petitioner has applied for
and received a temporary labor certifi-
cation from the U.S. Secretary of
Labor (Secretary). The temporary
labor certification reflects a deter-
mination by the Secretary that:

(1) There are not sufficient U.S.
workers who are qualified and will be
available at the time and place needed
to perform the labor or services in-
volved in the petition; and

(2) The employment of the foreign
worker will not adversely affect the
wages and working conditions of U.S.
workers similarly employed.

(b) Role of the Employment and Train-
ing Administration (ETA). The issuance
and denial of labor certifications under
8 U.S.C. 1184(c) has been delegated by
the Secretary to ETA, an agency with-
in the U.S. Department of Labor (the
Department or DOL), which in turn has
delegated that authority to the Office
of Foreign Labor Certification (OFLC).
In general, matters concerning the ob-
ligations of an H-2B employer related
to the temporary labor certification
process are administered by OFLC, in-
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cluding obligations and assurances
made by employers, overseeing em-
ployer recruitment, and assuring pro-
gram integrity. The regulations per-
taining to the issuance, denial, and
revocation of labor certification for
temporary foreign workers by the
OFLC are found in 20 CFR part 655,
Subpart A.

(c) Role of the Wage and Hour Division
(WHD). DHS, effective January 18, 2009,
under section 214(c)(14)(B) of the INA, 8
U.S.C. 1184(c)(14)(B), has delegated to
the Secretary certain investigatory
and law enforcement functions to carry
out the provisions under 8 U.S.C.
1184(c). The Secretary has delegated
these functions to the WHD. In general,
matters concerning the rights of H-2B
workers and workers in corresponding
employment under this part and the
employer’s obligations are enforced by
the WHD, including whether employ-
ment was offered to U.S. workers as re-
quired under 20 CFR part 655, Subpart
A, or whether U.S. workers were laid
off or displaced in violation of program
requirements. The WHD has the re-
sponsibility to carry out investiga-
tions, inspections, and law enforcement
functions and in appropriate instances
to impose penalties, to debar from fu-
ture certifications, to recommend rev-
ocation of existing certifications, and
to seek remedies for violations, includ-
ing recovery of unpaid wages and rein-
statement of improperly laid off or dis-
placed U.S. workers.

(d) Effect of regulations. The enforce-
ment functions carried out by the WHD
under 8 U.S.C. 1184(c), 20 CFR part 655,
Subpart A, and the regulations in this
part apply to the employment of any
H-2B worker and any worker in cor-
responding employment as the result of
an Application for Temporary Employ-
ment Certification filed with the Depart-
ment on or after April 23, 2012.

§503.2 Territory of Guam.

This part does not apply to tem-
porary employment in the Territory of
Guam. The Department does not cer-
tify to the United States Citizenship
and Immigration Services (USCIS) of
DHS the temporary employment of
nonimmigrant foreign workers under
H-2B visas, or enforce compliance with
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the provisions of the H-2B visa pro-
gram in the Territory of Guam. Under
DHS regulations, 8 CFR 214.2(h)(6)(v),
administration of the H-2B temporary
labor certification program is under-
taken by the Governor of Guam, or the
Governor’s designated representative.

§503.3 Coordination among Govern-
mental agencies.

(a) Complaints received by ETA or
any State Workforce Agency (SWA) re-
garding noncompliance with H-2B stat-
utory or regulatory labor standards
will be immediately forwarded to the
appropriate WHD office for suitable ac-
tion under the regulations in this part.

(b) Information received in the
course of processing registrations and
applications, program integrity meas-
ures, or enforcement actions may be
shared between OFLC and WHD or,
where applicable to employer enforce-
ment under the H-2B program, may be
forwarded to other agencies as appro-
priate, including the Department of
State (DOS) and DHS.

(c) A specific violation for which de-
barment is sought will be cited in a
single debarment proceeding. OFLC
and the WHD will coordinate their ac-
tivities to achieve this result. Copies of
final debarment decisions will be for-
warded to DHS promptly.

§503.4 Definition of terms.

For purposes of this part:

Act means the Immigration and Na-
tionality Act or INA, as amended, 8
U.S.C. 1101 et seq.

Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) means
a person within the Department’s Of-
fice of Administrative Law Judges ap-
pointed under 5 U.S.C. 3105.

Administrator, Office of Foreign Labor
Certification (OFLC) means the primary
official of the Office of Foreign Labor
Certification, ETA, or the Administra-
tor’s designee.

Administrator, Wage and Hour Division
(WHD) means the primary official of
the WHD, or the Administrator’s des-
ignee.

Agent. (1) Agent means a legal entity
or person who:

(i) Is authorized to act on behalf of
an employer for temporary non-
agricultural labor certification pur-
poses;
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(ii) Is not itself an employer, or a
joint employer, as defined in this part
with respect to a specific application;
and

(iii) Is not an association or other or-
ganization of employers.

(2) No agent who is under suspension,
debarment, expulsion, disbarment, or
otherwise restricted from practice be-
fore any court, the Department, the
Executive Office for Immigration Re-
view under 8 CFR 1003.101, or DHS
under 8 CFR 292.3 may represent an em-
ployer under this part.

Agricultural labor or services means
those duties and occupations defined in
20 CFR 655.100.

Applicant means a U.S. worker who is
applying for a job opportunity for
which an employer has filed an Applica-
tion for Temporary Employment Certifi-
cation (ETA Form 9142 and the appro-
priate appendices).

Application for Temporary Employment
Certification means the Office of Man-
agement and Budget (OMB)-approved
ETA Form 9142 and the appropriate ap-
pendices, a valid wage determination,
as required by 20 CFR 655.10, and a sub-
sequently-filed U.S. worker recruit-
ment report, submitted by an employer
to secure a temporary labor certifi-
cation determination from DOL.

Area of intended employment means
the geographic area within normal
commuting distance of the place
(worksite address) of the job oppor-
tunity for which the certification is
sought. There is no rigid measure of
distance that constitutes a normal
commuting distance or normal com-
muting area, because there may be
widely varying factual circumstances
among different areas (e.g., average
commuting times, barriers to reaching
the worksite, or quality of the regional
transportation network). If the place of
intended employment is within a Met-
ropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), in-
cluding a multistate MSA, any place
within the MSA is deemed to be within
normal commuting distance of the
place of intended employment. The
borders of MSAs are not controlling in
the identification of the normal com-
muting area; a location outside of an
MSA may be within normal commuting
distance of a location that is inside
(e.g., near the border of) the MSA.
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Attorney means any person who is a
member in good standing of the bar of
the highest court of any State, posses-
sion, territory, or commonwealth of
the U.S., or the District of Columbia.
No attorney who is under suspension,
debarment, expulsion, disbarment, or
otherwise restricted from practice be-
fore any court, the Department, the
Executive Office for Immigration Re-
view under 8 CFR 1003.101, or DHS
under 8 CFR 292.3 may represent an em-
ployer under this part.

Certifying Officer (CO) means an
OFLC official designated by the Ad-
ministrator, OFLC to make determina-
tions on applications under the H-2B
program. The Administrator, OFLC is
the National CO. Other COs may also
be designated by the Administrator,
OFLC to make the determinations re-
quired under 20 CFR part 655, Subpart
A.

Chief Administrative Law Judge (Chief
ALJ) means the chief official of the De-
partment’s Office of Administrative
Law Judges or the Chief Administra-
tive Law Judge’s designee.

Corresponding employment. (1) Cor-
responding employment means the em-
ployment of workers who are not H-2B
workers by an employer that has a cer-
tified H-2B Application for Temporary
Employment Certification when those
workers are performing either substan-
tially the same work included in the
job order or substantially the same
work performed by the H-2B workers,
except that workers in the following
two categories are not included in cor-
responding employment:

(i) Incumbent employees continu-
ously employed by the H-2B employer
to perform substantially the same
work included in the job order or sub-
stantially the same work performed by
the H-2B workers during the 52 weeks
prior to the period of employment cer-
tified on the Application for Temporary
Employment Certification and who have
worked or been paid for at least 35
hours in at least 48 of the prior 52
workweeks, and who have worked or
been paid for an average of at least 35
hours per week over the prior 52 weeks,
as demonstrated on the employer’s
payroll records, provided that the
terms and working conditions of their
employment are not substantially re-
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duced during the period of employment
covered by the job order. In deter-
mining whether this standard was met,
the employer may take credit for any
hours that were reduced by the em-
ployee voluntarily choosing not to
work due to personal reasons such as
illness or vacation; or

(ii) Incumbent employees covered by
a collective bargaining agreement or
an individual employment contract
that guarantees both an offer of at
least 35 hours of work each workweek
and continued employment with the H-
2B employer at least through the pe-
riod of employment covered by the job
order, except that the employee may be
dismissed for cause.

(2) To qualify as corresponding em-
ployment, the work must be performed
during the period of the job order, in-
cluding any approved extension there-
of.

Date of need means the first date the
employer requires services of the H-2B
workers as listed on the application.

Department of Homeland Security
(DHS) means the Federal Department
having jurisdiction over certain immi-
gration-related functions, acting
through its agencies, including USCIS.

Employee means a person who is en-
gaged to perform work for an em-
ployer, as defined under the general
common law. Some of the factors rel-
evant to the determination of em-
ployee status include: The hiring par-
ty’s right to control the manner and
means by which the work is accom-
plished; the skill required to perform
the work; the source of the instrumen-
talities and tools for accomplishing the
work; the location of the work; the hir-
ing party’s discretion over when and
how long to work; and whether the
work is part of the regular business of
the hiring party. Other applicable fac-
tors may be considered and no one fac-
tor is dispositive. The terms ‘‘em-
ployee” and ‘‘worker’’ are used inter-
changeably in this part.

Employer means a person (including
any individual, partnership, associa-
tion, corporation, cooperative, firm,
joint stock company, trust, or other
organization with legal rights and du-
ties) that:

(1) Has a place of business (physical
location) in the U.S. and a means by
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which it may be contacted for employ-
ment;

(2) Has an employer relationship
(such as the ability to hire, pay, fire,
supervise or otherwise control the
work of employees) with respect to an
H-2B worker or a worker in cor-
responding employment; and

(3) Possesses, for purposes of filing an
Application for Temporary Employment
Certification, a valid Federal Employer
Identification Number (FEIN).

Employment and Training Administra-
tion (ETA) means the agency within the
Department which includes OFLC and
has been delegated authority by the
Secretary to fulfill the Secretary’s
mandate under the DHS regulations for
the administration and adjudication of
an Application for Temporary Employ-
ment Certification and related functions.

Federal holiday means a legal public
holiday as defined at 5 U.S.C. 6103.

Full-time means 35 or more hours of
work per week.

H-2B Petition means the DHS Petition
for a Nonimmigrant Worker form, or suc-
cessor form, and accompanying docu-
mentation required by DHS for em-
ployers seeking to employ foreign per-
sons as H-2B nonimmigrant workers.
The H-2B Petition includes the ap-
proved Application for Temporary Em-
ployment Certification and the Final De-
termination letter.

H-2B Registration means the OMB-ap-
proved ETA Form 9155, submitted by
an employer to register its intent to
hire H-2B workers and to file an Appli-
cation for Temporary Employment Certifi-
cation.

H-2B worker means any temporary
foreign worker who is lawfully present
in the U.S. and authorized by DHS to
perform nonagricultural labor or serv-
ices of a temporary or seasonal nature
under 8 U.S.C. 1101(a)(15)(H)(ii)(b).

Job contractor means a person, asso-
ciation, firm, or a corporation that
meets the definition of an employer
and that contracts services or labor on
a temporary basis to one or more em-
ployers, which is not an affiliate,
branch or subsidiary of the job con-
tractor and where the job contractor
will not exercise substantial, direct
day-to-day supervision and control in
the performance of the services or
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labor to be performed other than hir-
ing, paying and firing the workers.

Job offer means the offer made by an
employer or potential employer of H-
2B workers to both U.S. and H-2B
workers describing all the material
terms and conditions of employment,
including those relating to wages,
working conditions, and other benefits.

Job opportunity means one or more
openings for full-time employment
with the petitioning employer within a
specified area(s) of intended employ-
ment for which the petitioning em-
ployer is seeking workers.

Job order means the document con-
taining the material terms and condi-
tions of employment relating to wages,
hours, working conditions, worksite
and other benefits, including obliga-
tions and assurances under 29 CFR part
6565, Subpart A and this subpart that is
posted between and among the SWAs
on their job clearance systems.

Joint employment means that where
two or more employers each have suffi-
cient definitional indicia of being an
employer to be considered the em-
ployer of a worker, those employers
will be considered to jointly employ
that worker. Each employer in a joint
employment relationship to a worker
is considered a joint employer of that
worker.

Layoff means any involuntary sepa-
ration of one or more U.S. employees
without cause.

Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA)
means a geographic entity defined by
OMB for use by Federal statistical
agencies in collecting, tabulating, and
publishing Federal statistics. A metro
area contains a core urban area of
50,000 or more population, and a micro
area contains an urban core of at least
10,000 (but fewer than 50,000) popu-
lation. Each metro or micro area con-
sists of one or more counties and in-
cludes the counties containing the core
urban area, as well as any adjacent
counties that have a high degree of so-
cial and economic integration (as
measured by commuting to work) with
the urban core.

National Processing Center (NPC)
means the office within OFLC which is
charged with the adjudication of an Ap-
plication for Temporary Employment Cer-
tification or other applications.
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Non-agricultural labor and services
means any labor or services not consid-
ered to be agricultural labor or services
as defined in 20 CFR part 655, Subpart
B. It does not include the provision of
services as members of the medical
profession by graduates of medical
schools.

Offered wage means the wage offered
by an employer in an H-2B job order.
The offered wage must equal or exceed
the highest of the prevailing wage or
Federal, State or local minimum wage.

Office of Foreign Labor Certification
(OFLC) means the organizational com-
ponent of the ETA that provides na-
tional leadership and policy guidance
and develops regulations to carry out
the Secretary’s responsibilities for the
admission of foreign workers to the
U.S. to perform work described in 8
U.S.C. 1101(a)(15)(H)({i)(b).

Prevailing wage determination (PWD)
means the prevailing wage for the posi-
tion, as described in 20 CFR 655.12,
which is the subject of the Application
for Temporary Employment Certification.

Secretary means the Secretary of
Labor, the chief official of the U.S. De-
partment of Labor, or the Secretary’s
designee.

Secretary of Homeland Security means
the chief official of the U.S. DHS or the
Secretary of DHS’s designee.

State Workforce Agency (SWA) means
a State government agency that re-
ceives funds under the Wagner-Peyser
Act (29 U.S.C. 49 et seq.) to administer
the State’s public labor exchange ac-
tivities.

Strike means a concerted stoppage of
work by employees as a result of a
labor dispute, or any concerted slow-
down or other concerted interruption
of operation (including stoppage by
reason of the expiration of a collective
bargaining agreement).

Successor in interest. (1) Successor in
interest means where an employer has
violated 20 CFR part 655, Subpart A or
this part, and has ceased doing busi-
ness or cannot be located for purposes
of enforcement, a successor in interest
to that employer may be held liable for
the duties and obligations of the vio-
lating employer in certain cir-
cumstances. The following factors, as
used under Title VII of the Civil Rights
Act and the Vietnam Era Veterans’ Re-

89

§503.4

adjustment Assistance Act, may be
considered in determining whether an
employer is a successor in interest; no
one factor is dispositive, but all of the
circumstances will be considered as a
whole:

(i) Substantial continuity of the
same business operations;

(ii) Use of the same facilities;

(iii) Continuity of the work force;

(iv) Similarity of jobs and working
conditions;

(v) Similarity of supervisory per-
sonnel;

(vi) Whether the former management
or owner retains a direct or indirect in-
terest in the new enterprise;

(vii) Similarity in machinery, equip-
ment, and production methods;

(viii) Similarity of products and serv-
ices; and

(ix) The ability of the predecessor to
provide relief.

(2) For purposes of debarment only,
the primary consideration will be the
personal involvement of the firm’s
ownership, management, supervisors,
and others associated with the firm in
the violation(s) at issue.

United States (U.S.) means the conti-
nental U.S., Alaska, Hawaii, the Com-
monwealth of Puerto Rico, and the ter-
ritories of Guam, the U.S. Virgin Is-
lands, and the Commonwealth of the
Northern Mariana Islands (CNMI).

United States Citicenship and Immigra-
tion Services (USCIS) means the Federal
agency within DHS that makes the de-
termination under the INA whether to
grant petitions filed by employers
seeking H-2B workers to perform tem-
porary mnonagricultural work in the
U.S.

United States worker (U.S. worker)
means a worker who is:

(1) A citizen or national of the U.S.;

(2) An alien who is lawfully admitted
for permanent residence in the U.S., is
admitted as a refugee under 8 U.S.C.
1157, is granted asylum under 8 U.S.C.
1158, or is an immigrant otherwise au-
thorized (by the INA or by DHS) to be
employed in the U.S.; or

(3) An individual who is not an unau-
thorized alien (as defined in 8 U.S.C.
1324a(h)(3)) with respect to the employ-
ment in which the worker is engaging.

Wage and Hour Division (WHD) means
the agency within the Department



§503.5

with investigatory and law enforce-
ment authority, as delegated from
DHS, to carry out the provisions under
8 U.S.C. 1184(c).

Wages mean all forms of cash remu-
neration to a worker by an employer in
payment for personal services.

§503.5 Temporary need.

(a) An employer seeking certification
under 20 CFR part 655, Subpart A must
establish that its need for non-agricul-
tural services or labor is temporary, re-
gardless of whether the underlying job
is permanent or temporary. 8 CFR
214.2(h)(6)(ii)(A).

(b) The employer’s need is considered
temporary if justified to the CO as one
of the following: a one-time occur-
rence; a seasonal need; a peakload
need; or an intermittent need, as de-
fined by DHS. 8 CFR 214.2(h)(6)(ii)(B).

§503.6 Waiver of rights prohibited.

A person may not seek to have an H-
2B worker, a worker in corresponding
employment, or any other person, in-
cluding but not limited to a U.S. work-
er improperly rejected for employment
or improperly laid off or displaced,
waive or modify any rights conferred
under 8 U.S.C. 1184(c), 20 CFR part 655,
Subpart A, or the regulations in this
part. Any agreement by an employee
purporting to waive or modify any
rights given to said person under these
provisions will be void as contrary to
public policy except as follows:

(a) Waivers or modifications of rights
or obligations hereunder in favor of the
Secretary will be valid for purposes of
enforcement; and

(b) Agreements in settlement of pri-
vate litigation are permitted.

§503.7 Investigation authority of Sec-
retary.

(a) Authority of the Administrator,
WHD. The Secretary of Homeland Se-
curity has delegated to the Secretary,
under 8 U.S.C. 1184(c)(14)(B), authority
to perform investigative and enforce-
ment functions. The Administrator,
WHD will perform all such functions.

(b) Conduct of investigations. The Sec-
retary, through the WHD, may inves-
tigate to determine compliance with
obligations under 8 U.S.C. 1184(c), 20
CFR part 655, Subpart A, or the regula-
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tions in this part, either under a com-
plaint or otherwise, as may be appro-
priate. In connection with such an in-
vestigation, WHD may enter and in-
spect any premises, land, property,
worksite, vehicles, structure, facility,
place and records (and make tran-
scriptions, photographs, scans, videos,
photocopies, or use any other means to
record the content of the records or
preserve images of places or objects),
question any person, or gather any in-
formation, in whatever form, as may be
appropriate.

(c) Confidential investigation. The
WHD will conduct investigations in a
manner that protects the confiden-
tiality of any complainant or other
person who provides information to the
Secretary in good faith.

(d) Report of violations. Any person
may report a violation of the obliga-
tions imposed by 8 U.S.C. 1184(c), 20
CFR part 655, Subpart A, or the regula-
tions in this part to the Secretary by
advising any local office of the SWA,
ETA, WHD or any other authorized
representative of the Secretary. The of-
fice or person receiving such a report
will refer it to the appropriate office of
WHD for the geographic area in which
the reported violation is alleged to
have occurred.

§503.8 Accuracy of information, state-
ments, data.

Information, statements, and data
submitted in compliance with 8 U.S.C.
1184(c) or the regulations in this part
are subject to 18 U.S.C. 1001, which pro-
vides, with regard to statements or en-
tries generally, that whoever, in any
matter within the jurisdiction of any
department or agency of the U.S.,
knowingly and willfully falsifies, con-
ceals, or covers up a material fact by
any trick, scheme, or device, or makes
any false, fictitious, or fraudulent
statements or representations, or
makes or uses any false writing or doc-
ument knowing the same to contain
any false, fictitious, or fraudulent
statement or entry, will be fined not
more than $250,000 or imprisoned not
more than 5 years, or both.
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The investigation, inspection, and
law enforcement functions that carry
out the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1184(c), 20
CFR part 655, Subpart A, or the regula-
tions in this part pertain to the em-
ployment of any H-2B worker, any
worker in corresponding employment,
or any U.S. worker improperly rejected
for employment or improperly laid off
or displaced.

Enforcement.

§503.16 Assurances and obligations of
H-2B employers.

An employer employing H-2B work-
ers and/or workers in corresponding
employment under an Application for
Temporary Employment Certification has
agreed as part of the Application for
Temporary Employment Certification that
it will abide by the following condi-
tions with respect to its H-2B workers
and any workers in corresponding em-
ployment:

(a) Rate of pay. (1) The offered wage
in the job order equals or exceeds the
highest of the prevailing wage or Fed-
eral minimum wage, State minimum
wage, or local minimum wage. The em-
ployer must pay at least the offered
wage, free and clear, during the entire
period of the Application for Temporary
Employment Certification granted by
OFLC.

(2) The offered wage is not based on
commissions, bonuses, or other incen-
tives, including paying on a piece-rate
basis, unless the employer guarantees a
wage earned every workweek that
equals or exceeds the offered wage.

(3) If the employer requires one or
more minimum productivity standards
of workers as a condition of job reten-
tion, the standards must be specified in
the job order and the employer must
demonstrate that they are normal and
usual for non-H-2B employers for the
same occupation in the area of in-
tended employment.

(4) An employer that pays on a piece-
rate basis must demonstrate that the
piece rate is no less than the normal
rate paid by non-H-2B employers to
workers performing the same activity
in the area of intended employment.
The average hourly piece rate earnings
must result in an amount at least
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equal to the offered wage. If the worker
is paid on a piece rate basis and at the
end of the workweek the piece rate
does not result in average hourly piece
rate earnings during the workweek at
least equal to the amount the worker
would have earned had the worker been
paid at the offered hourly wage, then
the employer must supplement the
worker’s pay at that time so that the
worker’s earnings are at least as much
as the worker would have earned dur-
ing the workweek if the worker had in-
stead been paid at the offered hourly
wage for each hour worked.

(b) Wages free and clear. The payment
requirements for wages in this section
will be satisfied by the timely payment
of such wages to the worker either in
cash or negotiable instrument payable
at par. The payment must be made fi-
nally and unconditionally and ‘‘free
and clear.” The principles applied in
determining whether deductions are
reasonable and payments are received
free and clear and the permissibility of
deductions for payments to third per-
sons are explained in more detail in 29
CFR part 531.

(c) Deductions. The employer must
make all deductions from the worker’s
paycheck required by law. The job
order must specify all deductions not
required by law which the employer
will make from the worker’s pay; any
such deductions not disclosed in the
job order are prohibited. The wage pay-
ment requirements of paragraph (b) of
this section are not met where unau-
thorized deductions, rebates, or refunds
reduce the wage payment made to the
worker below the minimum amounts
required by the offered wage or where
the worker fails to receive such
amounts free and clear because the
worker ‘‘kicks back’ directly or indi-
rectly to the employer or to another
person for the employer’s benefit the
whole or part of the wages delivered to
the worker. Authorized deductions are
limited to: Those required by law, such
as taxes payable by workers that are
required to be withheld by the em-
ployer and amounts due workers which
the employer is required by court order
to pay to another; deductions for the
reasonable cost or fair value of board,
lodging, and facilities furnished; and
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deductions of amounts which are au-
thorized to be paid to third persons for
the worker’s account and benefit
through his or her voluntary assign-
ment or order or which are authorized
by a collective bargaining agreement
with bona fide representatives of work-
ers which covers the employer. Deduc-
tions for amounts paid to third persons
for the worker’s account and benefit
which are not so authorized or are con-
trary to law or from which the em-
ployer, agent or recruiter, including
any agents or workers, or any affili-
ated person derives any payment, re-
bate, commission, profit, or benefit di-
rectly or indirectly, may not be made
if they reduce the actual wage paid to
the worker below the offered wage indi-
cated on the Application for Temporary
Employment Certification.

(d) Job opportunity is full-time. The job
opportunity is a full-time temporary
position, consistent with §503.4, and
the employer must use a single work-
week as its standard for computing
wages due. An employee’s workweek
must be a fixed and regularly recurring
period of 168 hours—seven consecutive
24-hour periods. It need not coincide
with the calendar week but may begin
on any day and at any hour of the day.

(e) Job qualifications and requirements.
Each job qualification and requirement
must be listed in the job order and
must be bona fide and consistent with
the normal and accepted qualifications
and requirements imposed by non-H-2B
employers in the same occupation and
area of intended employment. The em-
ployer’s job qualifications and require-
ments imposed on U.S. workers must
be no less favorable than the qualifica-
tions and requirements that the em-
ployer is imposing or will impose on H-
2B workers. A qualification means a
characteristic that is necessary to the
individual’s ability to perform the job
in question. A requirement means a
term or condition of employment
which a worker is required to accept in
order to obtain the job opportunity.
The CO may require the employer to
submit documentation to substantiate
the appropriateness of any job quali-
fication and/or requirement specified in
the job order.

(f) Three-fourths guarantee. (1) The
employer must guarantee to offer the
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worker employment for a total number
of work hours equal to at least three-
fourths of the workdays in each 12-
week period (each 6-week period if the
period of employment covered by the
job order is less than 120 days) begin-
ning with the first workday after the
arrival of the worker at the place of
employment or the advertised first
date of need, whichever is later, and
ending on the expiration date specified
in the job order or in its extensions, if
any. See the exception in paragraph (y)
of this section.

(2) For purposes of this paragraph (f)
a workday means the number of hours
in a workday as stated in the job order.
The employer must offer a total num-
ber of hours of work to ensure the pro-
vision of sufficient work to reach the
three-fourths guarantee in each 12-
week period (each 6-week period if the
period of employment covered by the
job order is less than 120 days) during
the work period specified in the job
order, or during any modified job order
period to which the worker and em-
ployer have mutually agreed and that
has been approved by the CO.

(3) In the event the worker begins
working later than the specified begin-
ning date the guarantee period begins
with the first workday after the arrival
of the worker at the place of employ-
ment, and continues until the last day
during which the job order and all ex-
tensions thereof are in effect.

(4) The 12-week periods to which the
guarantee applies (6-week periods if the
period of employment covered by the
job order is less than 120 days) to which
the guarantee applies are based upon
the workweek used by the employer for
pay purposes. The first 12-week period
(or 6-week period, as appropriate) also
includes any partial workweek, if the
first workday after the worker’s ar-
rival at the place of employment is not
the beginning of the employer’s work-
week, with the guaranteed number of
hours increased on a pro rata basis
(thus, the first period may include up
to 12 weeks and 6 days (or 6 weeks and
6 days, as appropriate)). The final 12-
week period (or 6-week period, as ap-
propriate) includes any time remaining
after the last full 12-week period (or 6-
week period) ends, and thus may be as
short as 1 day, with the guaranteed
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number of hours decreased on a pro
rata basis.

(5) Therefore, if, for example, a job
order is for a 32-week period (a period
greater than 120 days), during which
the normal workdays and work hours
for the workweek are specified as 5
days a week, 7 hours per day, the work-
er would have to be guaranteed em-
ployment for at least 315 hours (12
weeks x 35 hours/week = 420 hours x 75
percent = 315) in the first 12-week pe-
riod, at least 315 hours in the second 12-
week period, and at least 210 hours (8
weeks x 35 hours/week = 280 hours x 75
percent = 210) in the final partial pe-
riod. If the job order is for a 16-week
period (less than 120 days), during
which the normal workdays and work
hours for the workweek are specified as
5 days a week, 7 hours per day, the
worker would have to be guaranteed
employment for at least 157.5 hours (6
weeks x 35 hours/week = 210 hours x 75
percent = 157.5) in the first 6-week pe-
riod, at least 157.5 hours in the second
6-week period, and at least 105 hours (4
weeks x 35 hours/week = 140 hours x 75
percent = 105) in the final partial pe-
riod.

(6) If the worker is paid on a piece
rate basis, the employer must use the
worker’s average hourly piece rate
earnings or the offered wage, whichever
is higher, to calculate the amount due
under the guarantee.

(7) A worker may be offered more
than the specified hours of work on a
single workday. For purposes of meet-
ing the guarantee, however, the worker
will not be required to work for more
than the number of hours specified in
the job order for a workday. The em-
ployer, however, may count all hours
actually worked in calculating whether
the guarantee has been met. If during
any 12-week period (6-week period if
the period of employment covered by
the job order is less than 120 days) dur-
ing the period of the job order the em-
ployer affords the U.S. or H-2B worker
less employment than that required
under paragraph (f)(1) of this section,
the employer must pay such worker
the amount the worker would have
earned had the worker, in fact, worked
for the guaranteed number of days. An
employer has not met the work guar-
antee if the employer has merely of-
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fered work on three-fourths of the
workdays in an 12-week period (or 6-
week period, as appropriate) if each
workday did not consist of a full num-
ber of hours of work time as specified
in the job order.

(8) Any hours the worker fails to
work, up to a maximum of the number
of hours specified in the job order for a
workday, when the worker has been of-
fered an opportunity to work in accord-
ance with paragraph (f)(1) of this sec-
tion, and all hours of work actually
performed (including voluntary work
over 8 hours in a workday), may be
counted by the employer in calculating
whether each 12-week period (or 6-week
period, as appropriate) of guaranteed
employment has been met. An em-
ployer seeking to calculate whether
the guaranteed number of hours has
been met must maintain the payroll
records in accordance with this part.

(g) Impossibility of fulfillment. If, be-
fore the expiration date specified in the
job order, the services of the worker
are no longer required for reasons be-
yond the control of the employer due
to fire, weather, or other Act of God or
similar unforeseeable man-made cata-
strophic event (such as an oil spill or
controlled flooding) that is wholly out-
side the employer’s control that makes
the fulfillment of the job order impos-
sible, the employer may terminate the
job order with the approval of the CO.
In the event of such termination of a
job order, the employer must fulfill a
three-fourths guarantee, as described
in paragraph (f) of this section, for the
time that has elapsed from the start
date listed in the job order or the first
workday after the arrival of the worker
at the place of employment, whichever
is later, to the time of its termination.
The employer must make efforts to
transfer the H-2B worker or worker in
corresponding employment to other
comparable employment acceptable to
the worker and consistent with the
INA, as applicable. If a transfer is not
effected, the employer must return the
worker, at the employer’s expense, to
the place from which the worker (dis-
regarding intervening employment)
came to work for the employer, or
transport the worker to the worker’s
next certified H-2B employer, which-
ever the worker prefers.
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(h) Frequency of pay. The employer
must state in the job order the fre-
quency with which the worker will be
paid, which must be at least every 2
weeks or according to the prevailing
practice in the area of intended em-
ployment, whichever is more frequent.
Employers must pay wages when due.

(i) Earnings statements. (1) The em-
ployer must keep accurate and ade-
quate records with respect to the work-
ers’ earnings, including but not limited
to: records showing the nature,
amount, and location(s) of the work
performed; the number of hours of
work offered each day by the employer
(broken out by hours offered both in
accordance with and over and above
the three-fourths guarantee in para-
graph (f) of this section); the hours ac-
tually worked each day by the worker;
if the number of hours worked by the
worker is less than the number of
hours offered, the reason(s) the worker
did not work; the time the worker
began and ended each workday; the
rate of pay (both piece rate and hourly,
if applicable); the worker’s earnings
per pay period; the worker’s home ad-
dress; and the amount of and reasons
for any and all deductions taken from
or additions made to the worker’s
wages.

(2) The employer must furnish to the
worker on or before each payday in one
or more written statements the fol-
lowing information:

(i) The worker’s total earnings for
each workweek in the pay period;

(ii) The worker’s hourly rate and/or
piece rate of pay;

(iii) For each workweek in the pay
period the hours of employment offered
to the worker (showing offers in ac-
cordance with the three-fourths guar-
antee as determined in paragraph (f) of
this section, separate from any hours
offered over and above the guarantee);

(iv) For each workweek in the pay
period the hours actually worked by
the worker;

(v) An itemization of all deductions
made from or additions made to the
worker’s wages;

(vi) If piece rates are used, the units
produced daily;

(vii) The beginning and ending dates
of the pay period; and

94

29 CFR Ch. V (7-1-12 Edition)

(viii) The employer’s name, address
and FEIN.

(j) Transportation and visa fees. (1)(1)
Transportation to the place of employ-
ment. The employer must provide or
reimburse the worker for transpor-
tation and subsistence from the place
from which the worker has come to
work for the employer, whether in the
U.S. or abroad, to the place of employ-
ment if the worker completes 50 per-
cent of the period of employment cov-
ered by the job order (not counting any
extensions). The employer may arrange
and pay for the transportation and sub-
sistence directly, advance at a min-
imum the most economical and reason-
able common carrier cost of the trans-
portation and subsistence to the work-
er before the worker’s departure, or
pay the worker for the reasonable costs
incurred by the worker. When it is the
prevailing practice of non-H-2B em-
ployers in the occupation in the area to
do so or when the employer extends
such benefits to similarly situated H-
2B workers, the employer must ad-
vance the required transportation and
subsistence costs (or otherwise provide
them) to workers in corresponding em-
ployment who are traveling to the em-
ployer’s worksite. The amount of the
transportation payment must be no
less (and is not required to be more)
than the most economical and reason-
able common carrier transportation
charges for the distances involved. The
amount of the daily subsistence must
be at least the amount permitted in 20
CFR 655.173. Where the employer will
reimburse the reasonable costs in-
curred by the worker, it must keep ac-
curate and adequate records of: the
costs of transportation and subsistence
incurred by the worker; the amount re-
imbursed; and the date(s) of reimburse-
ment. Note that the Fair Labor Stand-
ards Act (FLSA) applies independently
of the H-2B requirements and imposes
obligations on employers regarding
payment of wages.

(ii) Transportation from the place of
employment. If the worker completes
the period of employment covered by
the job order (not counting any exten-
sions), or if the worker is dismissed
from employment for any reason by
the employer before the end of the pe-
riod, and the worker has no immediate
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subsequent H-2B employment, the em-
ployer must provide or pay at the time
of departure for the worker’s cost of re-
turn transportation and daily subsist-
ence from the place of employment to
the place from which the worker, dis-
regarding intervening employment, de-
parted to work for the employer. If the
worker has contracted with a subse-
quent employer that has not agreed in
the job order to provide or pay for the
worker’s transportation from the em-
ployer’s worksite to such subsequent
employer’s worksite, the employer
must provide or pay for that transpor-
tation and subsistence. If the worker
has contracted with a subsequent em-
ployer that has agreed in the job order
to provide or pay for the worker’s
transportation from the employer’s
worksite to such subsequent employ-
er’s worksite, the subsequent employer
must provide or pay for such expenses.

(iii) Employer-provided transpor-
tation. All employer-provided trans-
portation must comply with all appli-
cable Federal, State, and local laws
and regulations and must provide, at a

minimum, the same vehicle safety
standards, driver licensure require-
ments, and vehicle insurance as re-

quired under 49 CFR parts 390, 393, and
396.

(iv) Disclosure. All transportation
and subsistence costs that the em-
ployer will pay must be disclosed in the
job order.

(2) The employer must pay or reim-
burse the worker in the first workweek
for all visa, visa processing, border
crossing, and other related fees (includ-
ing those mandated by the govern-
ment) incurred by the H-2B worker,
but not for passport expenses or other
charges primarily for the benefit of the
worker.

(k) Employer-provided items. The em-
ployer must provide to the worker,
without charge or deposit charge, all
tools, supplies, and equipment required
to perform the duties assigned.

(1) Disclosure of job order. The em-
ployer must provide to an H-2B worker
outside of the U.S. no later than the
time at which the worker applies for
the visa, or to a worker in cor-
responding employment no later than
on the day work commences, a copy of
the job order including any subsequent
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approved modifications. For an H-2B
worker changing employment from an
H-2B employer to a subsequent H-2B
employer, the copy must be provided
no later than the time an offer of em-
ployment is made by the subsequent H-
2B employer. The disclosure of all doc-
uments required by this paragraph
must be provided in a language under-
stood by the worker, as necessary or
reasonable.

(m) Notice of worker rights. The em-
ployer must post and maintain in a
conspicuous location at the place of
employment a poster provided by the
Department which sets out the rights
and protections for H-2B workers and
workers in corresponding employment.
The employer must post the poster in
English. To the extent necessary, the
employer must request and post addi-
tional posters, as made available by
the Department, in any language com-
mon to a significant portion of the
workers if they are not fluent in
English.

(n) No unfair treatment. The employer
has not and will not intimidate, threat-
en, restrain, coerce, blacklist, dis-
charge or in any manner discriminate
against, and has not and will not cause
any person to intimidate, threaten, re-
strain, coerce, blacklist, discharge, or
in any manner discriminate against,
any person who has:

(1) Filed a complaint under or related
to 8 U.S.C. 1184(c), 20 CFR part 655,
Subpart A, or this part or any other
Department regulation promulgated
thereunder;

(2) Instituted or caused to be insti-
tuted any proceeding under or related
to 8 U.S.C. 1184(c), 20 CFR part 655,
Subpart A, or this part or any other
Department regulation promulgated
thereunder;

(3) Testified or is about to testify in
any proceeding under or related to 8
U.S.C. 1184(c), 20 CFR part 655, Subpart
A, or this part or any other Depart-
ment regulation promulgated there-
under;

(4) Consulted with a workers’ center,
community organization, labor union,
legal assistance program, or an attor-
ney on matters related to 8 U.S.C.
1184(c), 20 CFR part 655, Subpart A, or
this part or any other Department reg-
ulation promulgated thereunder; or
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(5) Exercised or asserted on behalf of
himself/herself or others any right or
protection afforded by 8 U.S.C. 1184(c),
20 CFR part 6565, Subpart A, or this part
or any other Department regulation
promulgated thereunder.

(o) Comply with the prohibitions
against employees paying fees. The em-
ployer and its attorney, agents, or em-
ployees have not sought or received
payment of any kind from the worker
for any activity related to obtaining H-
2B labor certification or employment,
including payment of the employer’s
attorney or agent fees, application and
H-2B Petition fees, recruitment costs,
or any fees attributed to obtaining the
approved Application for Temporary Em-
ployment Certification. For purposes of
this paragraph, payment includes, but
is not limited to, monetary payments,
wage concessions (including deductions
from wages, salary, or benefits), kick-
backs, bribes, tributes, in-kind pay-
ments, and free labor. All wages must
be paid free and clear. This provision
does not prohibit employers or their
agents from receiving reimbursement
for costs that are the responsibility
and primarily for the benefit of the
worker, such as government-required
passport fees.

(p) Contracts with third parties to com-
ply with prohibitions. The employer
must contractually prohibit in writing
any agent or recruiter (or any agent or
employee of such agent or recruiter)
whom the employer engages, either di-
rectly or indirectly, in international
recruitment of H-2B workers to seek or
receive payments or other compensa-
tion from prospective workers. The
contract must include the following
statement: ‘“Under this agreement,
[name of agent, recruiter] and any
agent of or employee of [name of agent
or recruiter] are prohibited from seek-
ing or receiving payments from any
prospective employee of [employer
name] at any time, including before or
after the worker obtains employment.
Payments include but are not limited
to, any direct or indirect fees paid by
such employees for recruitment, job
placement, processing, maintenance,
attorneys’ fees, agent fees, application
fees, or petition fees.”

(a) Prohibition against preferential
treatment of foreign workers. The em-
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ployer’s job offer must offer to U.S.
workers no less than the same benefits,
wages, and working conditions that the
employer is offering, intends to offer,
or will provide to H-2B workers. Job of-
fers may not impose on U.S. workers
any restrictions or obligations that
will not be imposed on the employer’s
H-2B workers. This does not relieve the
employer from providing to H-2B work-
ers at least the minimum benefits,
wages, and working conditions which
must be offered to U.S. workers con-
sistent with this section.

(r) Non-discriminatory hiring practices.
The job opportunity is, and through
the period set forth in paragraph (t) of
this section must continue to be, open
to any qualified U.S. worker regardless
of race, color, national origin, age, sex,
religion, disability, or citizenship. Re-
jections of any U.S. workers who ap-
plied or apply for the job must only be
for lawful, job-related reasons, and
those not rejected on this basis have
been or will be hired. In addition, the
employer has and will continue to re-
tain records of all hired workers and
rejected applicants as required by
§503.17.

(s) Recruitment requirements. The em-
ployer must conduct all required re-
cruitment activities, including any ad-
ditional employer-conducted recruit-
ment activities as directed by the CO,
and as specified in 20 CFR 655.40
through 655.46.

(t) Continuing requirement to hire U.S.
workers. The employer has and will
continue to cooperate with the SWA by
accepting referrals of all qualified U.S.
workers who apply (or on whose behalf
a job application is made) for the job
opportunity, and must provide employ-
ment to any qualified U.S. worker who
applies to the employer for the job op-
portunity, until 21 days before the date
of need.

(u) No strike or lockout. There is no
strike or lockout at any of the employ-
er’s worksites within the area of in-
tended employment for which the em-
ployer is requesting H-2B certification
at the time the Application for Tem-
porary Employment Certification is filed.

(v) No recent or future layoffs. The em-
ployer has not laid off and will not lay
off any similarly employed U.S. worker
in the occupation that is the subject of
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the Application for Temporary Employ-
ment Certification in the area of in-
tended employment within the period
beginning 120 calendar days before the
date of need through the end of the pe-
riod of certification. A layoff for law-
ful, job-related reasons such as lack of
work or the end of a season is permis-
sible if all H-2B workers are laid off be-
fore any U.S. worker in corresponding
employment.

(w) Contact with former U.S. employees.
The employer will contact (by mail or
other effective means) its former U.S.
workers, including those who have
been laid off within 120 calendar days
before the date of need (except those
who were dismissed for cause or who
abandoned the worksite), employed by
the employer in the occupation at the
place of employment during the pre-
vious year, disclose the terms of the
job order, and solicit their return to
the job.

(x) Area of intended employment and
job opportunity. The employer must not
place any H-2B workers employed
under the approved Application for Tem-
porary Employment Certification outside
the area of intended employment or in
a job opportunity not listed on the ap-
proved Application for Temporary Em-
ployment Certification unless the em-
ployer has obtained a new approved Ap-
plication for Temporary Employment Cer-
tification.

(y) Abandonment/termination of em-
ployment. Upon the separation from
employment of worker(s) employed
under the Application for Temporary Em-
ployment Certification or workers in cor-
responding employment, if such separa-
tion occurs before the end date of the
employment specified in the Applica-
tion for Temporary Employment Certifi-
cation, the employer must notify OFLC
in writing of the separation from em-
ployment not later than 2 work days
after such separation is discovered by
the employer. In addition, the em-
ployer must notify DHS in writing (or
any other method specified by the De-
partment or DHS in the FEDERAL REG-
ISTER or the Code of Federal Regula-
tions) of such separation of an H-2B
worker. An abandonment or
abscondment is deemed to begin after a
worker fails to report for work at the
regularly scheduled time for 5 consecu-
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tive working days without the consent
of the employer. If the separation is
due to the voluntary abandonment of
employment by the H-2B worker or
worker in corresponding employment,
and the employer provides appropriate
notification specified under this para-
graph, the employer will not be respon-
sible for providing or paying for the
subsequent transportation and subsist-
ence expenses of that worker under
this section, and that worker is not en-
titled to the three-fourths guarantee
described in paragraph (f) of this sec-
tion. The employer’s obligation to
guarantee three-fourths of the work de-
scribed in paragraph (f) ends with the
last full 12-week period (or 6-week pe-
riod, as appropriate) preceding the
worker’s voluntary abandonment or
termination for cause.

(z) Compliance with applicable laws.
During the period of employment spec-
ified on the Application for Temporary
Employment Certification, the employer
must comply with all applicable Fed-
eral, State and local employment-re-
lated laws and regulations, including
health and safety laws. In compliance
with such laws, including the William
Wilberforce Trafficking Victims Pro-
tection Reauthorization Act of 2008, 18
U.S.C. 1592(a), neither the employer nor
the employer’s agents or attorneys
may hold or confiscate workers’ pass-
ports, visas, or other immigration doc-
uments.

(aa) Disclosure of foreign worker re-
cruitment. The employer, and its attor-
ney or agent, as applicable, must com-
ply with 20 CFR 655.9 by providing a
copy of all agreements with any agent
or recruiter whom it engages or plans
to engage in the international recruit-
ment of H-2B workers, and the identity
and location of the persons or entities
hired by or working for the agent or re-
cruiter, and any of the agents or em-
ployees of those persons and entities,
to recruit foreign workers. Pursuant to
20 CFR 655.15(a), the agreements and
information must be filed with the Ap-
plication for Temporary Employment Cer-
tification.

(bb) Cooperation with investigators.
The employer must cooperate with any
employee of the Secretary who is exer-
cising or attempting to exercise the



§503.17

Department’s authority pursuant to 8
U.S.C. 1184(c).

§503.17 Document retention require-
ments of H-2B employers.

(a) Entities required to retain docu-
ments. All employers filing an Applica-
tion for Temporary Employment Certifi-
cation requesting H-2B workers are re-
quired to retain the documents and
records proving compliance with 20
CFR part 655, Subpart A and this part,
including but not limited to those spec-
ified in paragraph (c) of this section.

(b) Period of required retention. The
employer must retain records and doc-
uments for 3 years from the date of cer-
tification of the Application for Tem-
porary Employment Certification or from
the date of adjudication if the Applica-
tion for Temporary Employment Certifi-
cation is denied or 3 years from the day
the Department receives the letter of
withdrawal provided in accordance
with 20 CFR 655.62.

(c) Documents and records to be re-
tained by all employer applicants. All
employers filing an H-2B Registration
and an Application for Temporary Em-
ployment Certification must retain the
following documents and records and

must provide the documents and
records in the event of an audit or in-
vestigation:

(1) Documents and records not pre-
viously submitted during the registra-
tion process that substantiate tem-
porary need;

(2) Proof of recruitment efforts, as
applicable, including:

(i) Job order placement as specified
in 20 CFR 655.16;

(ii) Advertising as specified in 20 CFR
6565.41 and 655.42;

(iii) Contact with former U.S. work-
ers as specified in 20 CFR 655.43;

(iv) Contact with bargaining rep-
resentative(s), copy of the posting of
the job opportunity, and contact with
community-based organizations, if ap-
plicable, as specified in 20 CFR
6565.45(a), (b) and (c); and

(v) Additional employer-conducted
recruitment efforts as specified in 20
CFR 655.46;

(3) Substantiation of the information
submitted in the recruitment report
prepared in accordance with 20 CFR
655.48, such as evidence of nonapplica-
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bility of contact with former workers
as specified in 20 CFR 655.43;

(4) The final recruitment report and
any supporting resumes and contact in-
formation as specified in 20 CFR 655.48;

(5) Records of each worker’s earnings,
hours offered and worked, and other in-
formation as specified in §503.16(i);

(6) If appropriate, records of reim-
bursement of transportation and sub-
sistence costs incurred by the workers,
as specified in §503.16(j).

(7) Evidence of contact with U.S.
workers who applied for the job oppor-
tunity in the Application for Temporary
Employment Certification, including doc-
uments demonstrating that any rejec-
tions of U.S. workers were for lawful,
job-related reasons, as specified in
§503.16(1);

(8) Evidence of contact with any
former U.S. worker in the occupation
and the area of intended employment
in the Application for Temporary Em-
ployment Certification, including docu-
ments demonstrating that the TU.S.
worker had been offered the job oppor-
tunity in the Application for Temporary
Employment Certification, as specified in
§503.16(w), and that the U.S. worker ei-
ther refused the job opportunity or was
rejected only for lawful, job-related
reasons, as specified in §503.16(r);

(9) The written contracts with agents
or recruiters, as specified in 20 CFR
6565.8 and 655.9, and the list of the iden-
tities and locations of persons hired by
or working for the agent or recruiter
and these entities’ agents or employ-
ees, as specified in 20 CFR 655.9;

(10) Written notice provided to and
informing OFLC that an H-2B worker
or worker in corresponding employ-
ment has separated from employment
before the end date of employment
specified in the Application for Tem-
porary Employment Certification, as spec-
ified in §503.16(y);

(11) The H-2B Registration, job order,
and the Application for Temporary Em-
ployment Certification,

(12) The approved H-2B Petition, in-
cluding all accompanying documents;
and

(13) Any collective bargaining agree-
ment(s), individual employment con-
tract(s), or payroll records from the
previous year necessary to substan-
tiate any claim that certain incumbent
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workers are not included in cor-
responding employment, as specified in
§503.4.

(d) Awailability of documents for en-
forcement purposes. An employer must
make available to the Administrator,
WHD within 72 hours following a re-
quest by the WHD the documents and
records required under 20 CFR part 655,
Subpart A and this section so that the
Administrator, WHD may copy, tran-
scribe, or inspect them.

§503.18 Validity of temporary labor
certification.

(a) Validity period. A temporary labor
certification is valid only for the pe-
riod of time between the beginning and
ending dates of employment, as ap-
proved on the Application for Temporary
Employment Certification. The certifi-
cation expires on the last day of au-
thorized employment.

(b) Scope of wvalidity. A temporary
labor certification is valid only for the
number of H-2B positions, the area of
intended employment, the job classi-
fication and specific services or labor
to be performed, and the employer
specified on the approved Application
for Temporary Employment Certification.
The temporary labor certification may
not be transferred from one employer
to another unless the employer to
which it is transferred is a successor in
interest to the employer to which it
was issued.

§503.19 Violations.

(a) Types of violations. Pursuant to
the statutory provisions governing en-
forcement of the H-2B program, 8
U.S.C. 1184(c)(14)(A), a violation exists
under this part where the Adminis-
trator, WHD, through investigation,
determines that there has been a:

(1) Willful misrepresentation of a ma-
terial fact on the H-2B Registration, Ap-
plication for Temporary Employment Cer-
tification, or H-2B Petition;

(2) Substantial failure to meet any of
the terms and conditions of the H-2B
Registration, Application for Temporary
Employment Certification, or H-2B Peti-
tion. A substantial failure is a willful
failure to comply that constitutes a
significant deviation from the terms
and conditions of such documents; or
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(3) Willful misrepresentation of a ma-
terial fact to the Department of State
during the visa application process.

(b) Determining whether a violation is
willful. A willful misrepresentation of a
material fact or a willful failure to
meet the required terms and conditions
occurs when the employer, attorney, or
agent knows its statement is false or
that its conduct is in violation, or
shows reckless disregard for the truth-
fulness of its representation or for
whether its conduct satisfies the re-
quired conditions.

(c) Determining whether a violation is
significant. In determining whether a
violation is a significant deviation
from the terms and conditions of the
H-2B Registration, Application for Tem-
porary Employment Certification, or H-2B
Petition, the factors that the Adminis-
trator, WHD may consider include, but
are not limited to, the following:

(1) Previous history of violation(s)
under the H-2B program;

(2) The number of H-2B workers,
workers in corresponding employment,
or U.S. workers who were and/or are af-
fected by the violation(s);

(3) The gravity of the violation(s);

(4) The extent to which the violator
achieved a financial gain due to the
violation(s), or the potential financial
loss or potential injury to the work-
er(s); and

(56) Whether U.S. workers have been
harmed by the violation.

(d) Employer acceptance of obligations.
The provisions of this part become ap-
plicable upon the date that the employ-
er’s Application for Temporary Employ-
ment Certification is accepted. The em-
ployer’s submission of and signature on
the approved H-2B Registration, Appen-
dix B of the Application for Temporary
Employment Certification, and H-2B Peti-
tion constitute the employer’s rep-
resentation that the statements on the
forms are accurate and that it knows
and accepts the obligations of the pro-
gram.

§503.20 Sanctions and remedies—gen-
eral.

Whenever the Administrator, WHD
determines that there has been a viola-
tion(s), as described in §503.19, such ac-
tion will be taken and such proceedings
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instituted as deemed appropriate, in-
cluding (but not limited to) the fol-
lowing:

(a) Institute administrative pro-
ceedings, including for: The recovery of
unpaid wages (including recovery of
prohibited recruitment fees paid or im-
permissible deductions from pay, and
recovery of wages due for improperly
placing workers in areas of employ-
ment or in occupations other than
those identified on the Application for
Temporary Employment Certification and
for which a prevailing wage was not ob-
tained); the enforcement of provisions
of the job order, 8 U.S.C. 1184(c), 20 CFR
part 655, Subpart A, or the regulations
in this part; the assessment of a civil
money penalty; make whole relief for
any person who has been discriminated
against; reinstatement and make whole
relief for any U.S. worker who has been
improperly rejected for employment,
laid off or displaced; or debarment for
no less than 1 or no more than 5 years.

(b) The remedies referenced in para-
graph (a) of this section will be sought
either directly from the employer, or
from its successor in interest, or from
the employer’s agent or attorney, as
appropriate.

§503.21 Concurrent actions.

OFLC has primary responsibility to
make all determinations regarding the
issuance, denial, or revocation of a
labor certification as described in
§503.1(b) and in 20 CFR part 655, Sub-
part A. The WHD has primary responsi-
bility to make all determinations re-
garding the enforcement functions as
described in §503.1(c). The taking of
any one of the actions referred to
above will not be a bar to the concur-
rent taking of any other action author-
ized by 8 U.S.C. 1184(c), 20 CFR part 655,
Subpart A, or the regulations in this
part. OFLC and the WHD have concur-
rent jurisdiction to impose a debar-
ment remedy under 20 CFR 655.73 or
under §503.24.

§503.22 Representation of the Sec-
retary.

The Solicitor of Labor, through au-
thorized representatives, will represent
the Administrator, WHD and the Sec-
retary in all administrative hearings
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under 8 U.S.C. 1184(c)(14) and the regu-
lations in this part.

§503.23 Civil money penalty assess-
ment.

(a) A civil money penalty may be as-
sessed by the Administrator, WHD for
each violation that meets the stand-
ards described in §503.19. Each such
violation involving the failure to pay
an individual worker properly or to
honor the terms or conditions of a
worker’s employment required by the
H-2B Registration, Application for Tem-
porary Employment Certification, or H-2B
Petition, constitutes a separate viola-
tion. Civil money penalty amounts for
such violations are determined as set
forth in paragraphs (b) to (e) of this
section.

(b) Upon determining that an em-
ployer has violated any provisions of
§503.16 related to wages, impermissible
deductions or prohibited fees and ex-
penses, the Administrator, WHD may
assess civil money penalties that are
equal to the difference between the
amount that should have been paid and
the amount that actually was paid to
such worker(s), not to exceed $10,000
per violation.

(c) Upon determining that an em-
ployer has terminated by layoff or oth-
erwise or has refused to employ any
worker in violation of §503.16(r), (t), or
(v), within the periods described in
those sections, the Administrator,
WHD may assess civil money penalties
that are equal to the wages that would
have been earned but for the layoff or
failure to hire, not to exceed $10,000 per
violation. No civil money penalty will
be assessed, however, if the employee
refused the job opportunity, or was ter-
minated for lawful, job-related reasons.

(d) The Administrator, WHD may as-
sess civil money penalties in an
amount not to exceed $10,000 per viola-
tion for any other violation that meets
the standards described in §503.19.

(e) In determining the amount of the
civil money penalty to be assessed
under paragraph (d) of this section, the
Administrator, WHD will consider the
type of violation committed and other
relevant factors. In determining the
level of penalties to be assessed, the
highest penalties will be reserved for
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willful failures to meet any of the con-
ditions of the Application for Temporary
Employment Certification and H-2B Peti-
tion that involve harm to U.S. workers.
Other factors which may be considered
include, but are not limited to, the fol-
lowing:

(1) Previous history of violation(s) of
8 U.S.C. 1184(c), 20 CFR part 655, Sub-
part A, or the regulations in this part;

(2) The number of H-2B workers,
workers in corresponding employment,
or improperly rejected U.S. applicants
who were and/or are affected by the
violation(s);

(3) The gravity of the violation(s);

(4) Efforts made in good faith to com-
ply with 8 U.S.C. 1184(c), 20 CFR part
655, Subpart A, and the regulations in
this part;

(5) Explanation from the person
charged with the violation(s);

(6) Commitment to future compli-
ance, taking into account the public
health, interest or safety; and

(7) The extent to which the violator
achieved a financial gain due to the
violation, or the potential financial
loss or potential injury to the workers.

§503.24 Debarment.

(a) Debarment of an employer. The Ad-
ministrator, OFLC may not issue fu-
ture labor certifications under 20 CFR
part 655, Subpart A to an employer or
any successor in interest to that em-
ployer, subject to the time limits set
forth in paragraph (c) of this section, if
the Administrator, WHD finds that the
employer committed a violation that
meets the standards of §503.19. Where
these standards are met, debarrable
violations would include but not be
limited to one or more acts of commis-
sion or omission which involve:

(1) Failure to pay or provide the re-
quired wages, benefits, or working con-
ditions to the employer’s H-2B workers
and/or workers in corresponding em-
ployment;

(2) Failure, except for lawful, job-re-
lated reasons, to offer employment to
qualified U.S. workers who applied for
the job opportunity for which certifi-
cation was sought;

(3) Failure to comply with the em-
ployer’s obligations to recruit U.S.
workers;
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(4) Improper layoff or displacement
of U.S. workers or workers in cor-
responding employment;

(5) Failure to comply with one or
more sanctions or remedies imposed by
the Administrator, WHD for viola-
tion(s) of obligations under the job
order or other H-2B obligations, or
with one or more decisions or orders of
the Secretary or a court under 20 CFR
part 6565, Subpart A or this part;

(6) Impeding an investigation of an
employer under this part;

(7) Employing an H-2B worker out-
side the area of intended employment,
in an activity/activities not listed in
the job order, or outside the validity
period of employment of the job order,
including any approved extension
thereof;

(8) A violation of the requirements of
§503.16(0) or (p);

(9) A violation of any of the provi-
sions listed in §503.16(r);

(10) Any other act showing such fla-
grant disregard for the law that future
compliance with program requirements
cannot reasonably be expected;

(11) Fraud involving the H-2B Reg-
istration, Application for Temporary Em-
ployment Certification, or H-2B Petition,
or

(12) A material misrepresentation of
fact during the registration or applica-
tion process.

(b) Debarment of an agent or attorney.
If the Administrator, WHD finds, under
this section, that an agent or attorney
committed a violation as described in
paragraph (a) of this section or partici-
pated in an employer’s violation, the
Administrator, OFLC may not issue fu-
ture labor certifications to an em-
ployer represented by such agent or at-
torney, subject to the time limits set
forth in paragraph (c) of this section.

(c) Period of debarment. Debarment
under this subpart may not be for less
than 1 year or more than 5 years from
the date of the final agency decision.

(d) Debarment procedure. If the Ad-
ministrator, WHD makes a determina-
tion to debar an employer, attorney, or
agent, the Administrator, WHD will
send the party a Notice of Debarment.
The notice will state the reason for the
debarment finding, including a detailed
explanation of the grounds for and the
duration of the debarment and inform

101



§503.25

the party subject to the notice of its
right to request a debarment hearing
and the timeframe under which such
rights must be exercised under §503.43.
If the party does not request a hearing
within 30 calendar days of the date of
the Notice of Debarment, the notice is
the final agency action and the debar-
ment will take effect at the end of the
30-day period. The timely filing of an
administrative appeal stays the debar-
ment pending the outcome of the ap-
peal as provided in §503.43(e).

(e) Concurrent debarment jurisdiction.
OFLC and the WHD have concurrent
jurisdiction debar under 20 CFR 655.73
or under this part. When considering
debarment, OFLC and the WHD will co-
ordinate their activities. A specific vio-
lation for which debarment is imposed
will be cited in a single debarment pro-
ceeding. Copies of final debarment de-
cisions will be forwarded to DHS and
DOS promptly.

(f) Debarment from other labor certifi-
cation programs. Upon debarment under
this part or 20 CFR 655.73, the debarred
party will be disqualified from filing
any labor certification applications or
labor condition applications with the
Department by, or on behalf of, the
debarred party for the same period of
time set forth in the final debarment
decision.

§503.25 Failure to cooperate with in-
vestigators.

(a) No person will interfere or refuse
to cooperate with any employee of the
Secretary who is exercising or at-
tempting to exercise the Department’s
investigative or enforcement authority
under 8 U.S.C. 1184(c). Federal statutes
prohibiting persons from interfering
with a Federal officer in the course of
official duties are found at 18 U.S.C. 111
and 18 U.S.C. 114.

(b) Where an employer (or employer’s
agent or attorney) interferes or does
not cooperate with an investigation
concerning the employment of an H-2B
worker or a worker in corresponding
employment, or a U.S. worker who has
been improperly rejected for employ-
ment or improperly laid off or dis-
placed, WHD may make such informa-
tion available to OFLC and may rec-
ommend that OFLC revoke the exist-
ing certification that is the basis for
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the employment of the H-2B workers
giving rise to the investigation. In ad-
dition, WHD may take such action as
appropriate where the failure to co-
operate meets the standards in §503.19,
including initiating proceedings for the
debarment of the employer from future
certification for up to 5 years, and/or
assessing civil money penalties against
any person who has failed to cooperate
with a WHD investigation. The taking
of any one action will not bar the tak-
ing of any additional action.

§503.26 Civil money penalties—pay-
ment and collection.

Where a civil money penalty is as-
sessed in a final order by the Adminis-
trator, WHD, by an ALJ, or by the
ARB, the amount of the penalty must
be received by the Administrator, WHD
within 30 calendar days of the date of
the final order. The person assessed the
penalty will remit the amount ordered
to the Administrator, WHD by certified
check or by money order, made payable
to the Wage and Hour Division, United
States Department of Labor. The re-
mittance will be delivered or mailed to
the WHD Regional Office for the area
in which the violations occurred.

Subpart C—Administrative
Proceedings

§503.40 Applicability of procedures
and rules.

The procedures and rules contained
in this subpart prescribe the adminis-
trative appeal process that will be ap-
plied with respect to a determination
to assess civil money penalties, to
debar, to enforce provisions of the job
order or obligations under 8 U.S.C.
1184(c), 20 CFR part 655, Subpart A, or
the regulations in this part, or to the
collection of monetary relief due as a
result of any violation.

PROCEDURES RELATED TO HEARING

§503.41 Administrator, WHD’s deter-
mination.
(a) Whenever the Administrator,

WHD decides to assess a civil money
penalty, to debar, or to impose other
appropriate administrative remedies,
including for the recovery of monetary
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relief, the party against which such ac-
tion is taken will be notified in writing
of such determination.

(b) The Administrator, WHD’s deter-
mination will be served on the party by
personal service or by certified mail at
the party’s last known address. Where
service by certified mail is not accept-
ed by the party, the Administrator
may exercise discretion to serve the
determination by regular mail.

§503.42 Contents of notice of deter-
mination.

The notice of determination required
by §503.41 will:

(a) Set forth the determination of the
Administrator, WHD, including:

(1) The amount of any monetary re-
lief due; or

(2) Other appropriate administrative
remedies; or

(3) The amount of any civil money
penalty assessment; or

(4) Whether debarment is sought and
the term; and

(5) The reason or reasons for such de-
termination.

(b) Set forth the right to request a
hearing on such determination;

(c) Inform the recipient(s) of the no-
tice that in the absence of a timely re-
quest for a hearing, received by the
Chief ALJ within 30 calendar days of
the date of the determination, the de-
termination of the Administrator,
WHD will become final and not appeal-
able;

(d) Set forth the time and method for
requesting a hearing, and the related
procedures for doing so, as set forth in
§503.43, and give the addresses of the
Chief ALJ (with whom the request
must be filed) and the representative(s)
of the Solicitor of Labor (upon whom
copies of the request must be served);
and

(e) Where appropriate, inform the re-
cipient(s) of the notice that the Admin-
istrator, WHD will notify OFLC and
DHS of the occurrence of a violation by
the employer.

§503.43 Request for hearing.

(a) Any party desiring review of a de-
termination issued under §503.41, in-
cluding judicial review, must make a
request for such an administrative
hearing in writing to the Chief ALJ at
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the address stated in the notice of de-
termination. In such a proceeding, the
Administrator will be the plaintiff, and
the party will be the respondent. If
such a request for an administrative
hearing is timely filed, the Adminis-
trator, WHD’s determination will be in-
operative unless and until the case is
dismissed or the ALJ issues an order
affirming the decision.

(b) No particular form is prescribed
for any request for hearing permitted
by this section. However, any such re-
quest will:

(1) Be dated;

(2) Be typewritten or legibly written;

(3) Specify the issue or issues stated
in the notice of determination giving
rise to such request;

(4) State the specific reason or rea-
sons why the party believes such deter-
mination is in error;

(5) Be signed by the party making the
request or by the agent or attorney of
such party; and

(6) Include the address at which such
party or agent or attorney desires to
receive further communications relat-
ing thereto.

(c) The request for such hearing must
be received by the Chief ALJ, at the
address stated in the Administrator,
WHD’s notice of determination, no
later than 30 calendar days after the
date of the determination. A party
which fails to meet this 30-day deadline
for requesting a hearing may there-
after participate in the proceedings
only by consent of the ALJ.

(d) The request may be filed in per-
son, by facsimile transmission, by cer-
tified or regular mail, or by courier
service within the time set forth in
paragraph (c) of this section. For the
requesting party’s protection, if the re-
quest is by mail, it should be by cer-
tified mail. If the request is by fac-
simile transmission, the original of the
request, signed by the party or its at-
torney or agent, must be filed within 25
days.

(e) The determination will take ef-
fect on the start date identified in the
written notice of determination, unless
an administrative appeal is properly
filed. The timely filing of an adminis-
trative appeal stays the determination
pending the outcome of the appeal pro-
ceedings.
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(f) Copies of the request for a hearing
will be sent by the party or attorney or
agent to the WHD official who issued
the notice of determination on behalf
of the Administrator, WHD, and to the
representative(s) of the Solicitor of
Labor identified in the notice of deter-
mination.

RULES OF PRACTICE

§503.44 General.

(a) Except as specifically provided in
the regulations in this part and to the
extent they do not conflict with the
provisions of this part, the Rules of
Practice and Procedure for Administra-
tive Hearings Before the Office of Ad-
ministrative Law Judges established
by the Secretary at 29 CFR part 18 will
apply to administrative proceedings
described in this part.

(b) As provided in the Administrative
Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. 556, any oral or
documentary evidence may be received
in proceedings under this part. The
Federal Rules of Evidence and subpart
B of the Rules of Practice and Proce-
dure for Administrative Hearings Be-
fore the Office of Administrative Law
Judges (29 CFR part 18, Subpart B) will
not apply, but principles designed to
ensure production of relevant and pro-
bative evidence will guide the admis-
sion of evidence. The ALJ may exclude
evidence which is immaterial, irrele-
vant, or unduly repetitive.

§503.45 Service of pleadings.

(a) Under this part, a party may
serve any pleading or document by reg-
ular mail. Service on a party is com-
plete upon mailing to the last known
address. No additional time for filing
or response is authorized where service
is by mail. In the interest of expedi-
tious proceedings, the ALJ may direct
the parties to serve pleadings or docu-
ments by a method other than regular
mail.

(b) Two copies of all pleadings and
other documents in any ALJ pro-
ceeding must be served on the attor-
neys for the Administrator, WHD. One
copy must be served on the Associate
Solicitor, Division of Fair Labor
Standards, Office of the Solicitor, U.S.
Department of Labor, 200 Constitution
Avenue NW., Room N-2716, Wash-
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ington, DC 20210, and one copy must be
served on the attorney representing
the Administrator in the proceeding.

(c) Time will be computed beginning
with the day following service and in-
cludes the last day of the period unless
it is a Saturday, Sunday, or Federally-
observed holiday, in which case the
time period includes the next business
day.

§503.46 Commencement of proceeding.

Each administrative proceeding per-
mitted under 8 U.S.C. 1184(c)(14) and
the regulations in this part will be
commenced upon receipt of a timely
request for hearing filed in accordance
with §503.43.

§503.47 Caption of proceeding.

(a) Each administrative proceeding
instituted under 8 U.S.C. 1184(c)(14) and
the regulations in this part will be cap-
tioned in the name of the person re-
questing such hearing, and will be
styled as follows:

IN THE MATTER OF , RESPONDENT.

(b) For the purposes of such adminis-
trative proceedings the Administrator,
WHD will be identified as plaintiff and
the person requesting such hearing will
be named as respondent.

§503.48 Conduct of proceeding.

(a) Upon receipt of a timely request
for a hearing filed under and in accord-
ance with §503.43, the Chief ALJ will
promptly appoint an ALJ to hear the
case.

(b) The ALJ will notify all parties of
the date, time and place of the hearing.
Parties will be given at least 30 cal-
endar days notice of such hearing.

(c) The ALJ may prescribe a schedule
by which the parties are permitted to
file a prehearing brief or other written
statement of fact or law. Any such
brief or statement must be served upon
each other party. Post-hearing briefs
will not be permitted except at the re-
quest of the ALJ. When permitted, any
such brief must be limited to the issue
or issues specified by the ALJ, will be
due within the time prescribed by the
ALJ, and must be served on each other
party.
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PROCEDURES BEFORE ADMINISTRATIVE
LAW JUDGE

§503.49 Consent findings and order.

(a) General. At any time after the
commencement of a proceeding under
this part, but before the reception of
evidence in any such proceeding, a
party may move to defer the receipt of
any evidence for a reasonable time to
permit negotiation of an agreement
containing consent findings and an
order disposing of the whole or any
part of the proceeding. The allowance
of such deferment and the duration
thereof will be at the discretion of the
ALJ, after consideration of the nature
of the proceeding, the requirements of
the public interest, the representations
of the parties, and the probability of an
agreement being reached which will re-
sult in a just disposition of the issues
involved.

(b) Content. Any agreement con-
taining consent findings and an order
disposing of a proceeding or any part
thereof will also provide:

(1) That the order will have the same
force and effect as an order made after
full hearing;

(2) That the entire record on which
any order may be based will consist
solely of the notice of administrative
determination (or amended notice, if
one is filed), and the agreement;

(3) A waiver of any further proce-
dural steps before the ALJ; and

(4) A waiver of any right to challenge
or contest the validity of the findings
and order entered into in accordance
with the agreement.

(c) Submission. On or before the expi-
ration of the time granted for negotia-
tions, the parties or their attorney or
agent may:

(1) Submit the proposed agreement
for consideration by the ALJ; or

(2) Inform the ALJ that agreement
cannot be reached.

(d) Disposition. In the event an agree-
ment containing consent findings and
an order is submitted within the time
allowed therefore, the ALJ, within 30
days thereafter, will, if satisfied with
its form and substance, accept such
agreement by issuing a decision based
upon the agreed findings.

§503.50
POST-HEARING PROCEDURES

§503.50 Decision and order of Admin-
istrative Law Judge.

(a) The ALJ will prepare, within 60
days after completion of the hearing
and closing of the record, a decision on
the issues referred by the Adminis-
trator, WHD.

(b) The decision of the ALJ will in-
clude a statement of the findings and
conclusions, with reasons and basis
therefore, upon each material issue
presented on the record. The decision
will also include an appropriate order
which may affirm, deny, reverse, or
modify, in whole or in part, the deter-
mination of the Administrator, WHD.
The reason or reasons for such order
will be stated in the decision.

(¢c) In the event that the Adminis-
trator, WHD assesses back wages for
wage violation(s) of §503.16 based upon
a PWD obtained by the Administrator
from OFLC during the investigation
and the ALJ determines that the Ad-
ministrator’s request was not war-
ranted, the ALJ will remand the mat-
ter to the Administrator for further
proceedings on the Administrator’s de-
termination. If there is no such deter-
mination and remand by the ALJ, the
ALJ will accept as final and accurate
the wage determination obtained from
OFLC or, in the event the party filed a
timely appeal under 20 CFR 655.13 the
final wage determination resulting
from that process. Under no cir-
cumstances will the ALJ determine the
validity of the wage determination or
require submission into evidence or
disclosure of source data or the names
of establishments contacted in devel-
oping the survey which is the basis for
the PWD.

(d) The decision will be served on all
parties.

(e) The decision concerning civil
money penalties, debarment, monetary
relief, and/or other administrative rem-
edies, when served by the ALJ will con-
stitute the final agency order unless
the ARB, as provided for in §503.51, de-
termines to review the decision.
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§503.51

REVIEW OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW
JUDGE’S DECISION

§503.51 Procedures for initiating and
undertaking review.

(a) A respondent, the WHD, or any
other party wishing review, including
judicial review, of the decision of an
ALJ will, within 30 days of the decision
of the ALJ, petition the ARB to review
the decision. Copies of the petition will
be served on all parties and on the
ALJ.

(b) No particular form is prescribed
for any petition for the ARB’s review
permitted by this part. However, any
such petition will:

(1) Be dated;

(2) Be typewritten or legibly written;

(3) Specify the issue or issues stated
in the ALJ decision and order giving
rise to such petition;

(4) State the specific reason or rea-
sons why the party petitioning for re-
view believes such decision and order
are in error;

(5) Be signed by the party filing the
petition or by an authorized represent-
ative of such party;

(6) Include the address at which such
party or authorized representative de-
sires to receive further communica-
tions relating thereto; and

(7) Include as an attachment the
ALJ’s decision and order, and any
other record documents which would
assist the ARB in determining whether
review is warranted.

(c) If the ARB does not issue a notice
accepting a petition for review of the
decision within 30 days after receipt of
a timely filing of the petition, or with-
in 30 days of the date of the decision if
no petition has been received, the deci-
sion of the ALJ will be deemed the
final agency action.

(d) Whenever the ARB, either on the
ARB’s own motion or by acceptance of
a party’s petition, determines to re-
view the decision of an ALJ, a notice of
the same will be served upon the ALJ
and upon all parties to the proceeding.

§503.52 Responsibility of the Office of
Administrative Law Judges (OALJ).
Upon receipt of the ARB’s notice
under §503.51, the OALJ will promptly
forward a copy of the complete hearing
record to the ARB.

29 CFR Ch. V (7-1-12 Edition)

§503.53 Additional information, if re-
quired.

Where the ARB has determined to re-
view such decision and order, the ARB
will notify the parties of:

(a) The issue or issues raised;

(b) The form in which submissions
will be made (i.e., briefs, oral argu-
ment); and

(c) The time within which such pres-
entation will be submitted.

§503.54 Submission of documents to
the Administrative Review Board.

All documents submitted to the ARB
will be filed with the Administrative
Review Board, U.S. Department of
Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue NW.,
Room S-5220, Washington, DC 20210. An
original and two copies of all docu-
ments must be filed. Documents are
not deemed filed with the ARB until
actually received by the ARB. All doc-
uments, including documents filed by
mail, must be received by the ARB ei-
ther on or before the due date. Copies
of all documents filed with the ARB
must be served upon all other parties
involved in the proceeding.

§503.55 Final decision of the Adminis-
trative Review Board.

The ARB’s final decision will be
issued within 90 days from the notice
granting the petition and served upon
all parties and the ALJ.

RECORD

§503.56 Retention of official record.

The official record of every com-
pleted administrative hearing provided
by the regulations in this part will be
maintained and filed under the custody
and control of the Chief ALJ, or, where
the case has been the subject of admin-
istrative review, the ARB.

PART 504—ATTESTATIONS BY FA-
CILITIES USING NONIMMIGRANT
ALIENS AS REGISTERED NURSES

AUTHORITY: 8 U.S.C. 1101(a)(15)(H)(i)(a) and
1182(m); sec. 3(c)(1), Pub. L. 101-238, 103 Stat.
2099, 2103; and sec. 341 (a) and (b), Pub. L. 103-
182, 107 Stat. 2057.

SOURCE: 61 FR 51014, Sept. 30, 1996, unless
otherwise noted.
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